Case 8:13-cv-01749-JLS-AN Document 1 Filed 11/05/13 Page 1 of 31 Page ID #:1

FILED
1 STEVE W. BERMAN (pro hac vice pending) oo unu = pu 1.
PIAGENS BERMAN SOBOL SHAFRG TEp 201310V =5 PH 1: 06
2 1918 Eighth Avenue, Suite 3300 e o
Seattle, WA 98101 SR e oiiRIGT CaURT
3 || Telephone: g206) 623-7292 SAN
Facsimile: S 06) 623-0594 o
4 steve@hbsslaw.com B
5 LEE M. GORDON (SBN 174168)
HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL
6 SHAPIRO LLP
301 N. Lake Ave., Suite 203
7 Pasadena, CA 91101
Tel.: (213) 330-7150
8 Fax: (213) 330-7152
lee@hbsslaw.com
9
10 Attorneys for Plaintiff
and the Proposed Class
11 ,
12 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
13 CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
14
15 Gregory T. Pero, an individual, eral;on ) No. SACV13-01749 JLS (ANx)
behalf of himself and all others similarly )
16 situated, )
) CLASS ACTION
17 Plaintiff, ) ’
)  COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES
18 v. )  AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
)
1 Medical Management International, Inc., )
20 d.b.a. Banfield Pet Hospital, a Delaware )
corporation, )
21 )
By Defendant. )  Demand for Jury Trial
)
23 )
)
24 )
25 L
26
27
28




O 00 9 O it AW

BN N NN NN N NN = ek e em e b e e
X 3 N R W= O YN NN WD =D

Cdse 8:13-cv-01749-JLS-AN Document 1 Filed 11/05/13 Page 2 of 31 Page ID #:2

Plaintiff Gregory T. Pero (“Plainitff”) brings this action on behalf of himself and
all others similarly situated against Medical Management International, Inc., d.b.a.
“Banfield Pet Hospital” (“Banfield” or “Defendant™). Plaintiff’s allegations against
Defendant are based upon information‘ and belief and upon investigation of Plaintiff’s
counsel, except for allegations specifically pertaining to Plaintiff, which are based upon
Plaintiff’s personal knowledge.

L. OVERVIEW

L. Plaintiff holds these truths to be self-evident: (a) Pet care providers
should be honest about the true costs of their products and services, and (b) pet care
providers should not upsell unnecessary pet care.

2. Banfield is part of the multi-billion dollar Mars, Inc. conglomerate,
which is best known for selling branded candy products. Banfield operates hundreds
of pet care outlets through PetSmart stores around the country.

3. Banfield aggressively markets, advertises, and sells “Optimum Wellness
Plans” (“Wellness Plans” or “OWPs”) that purportedly offer deep savings and
discounts for preventive pet care services and related pet care products. Banfield has
enrolled more than 1 million pets in its OWPs nationwide.

4. Banfield does not provide the promised savings and discounts under its
OWPs, and Banfield upsells unnecessary pet care to OWP clients. This class action
seeks to remedy: (a) Banfield’s deceptive marketing of savings and discounts under
OWPs; and (b) Banfield’s deceptive and coercive upselling of additional pet care
products and services. Banfield’s conduct violates consumer protection laws in
California and nationwide.

5. In particular, Banfield’s conduct violates California laws prohibiting

sellers from marketing savings and discounts that are false or misleading, and

|| prohibiting them from using unfair sales tactics to sell their goods and services. In

this regard, the challenged conduct violates: (i) California’s Business & Professions
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Code §§ 17500, et seq. (the “FAL”), (i1) the Consumers Legal Remedies Act,
California Civil Code §§ 1750, et seq. (the “CLRA™), (iii) California’s Business &
Professions Code §§ 17200, ef seq. (the “UCL”), (iv) California’s common law of
intentional misrepresentation, (v) California’s common law of concealment, and
(vi) the unfair competition laws of various states that correspond to the UCL.

6. Banfield’s OWPS include one or more physical exams, vaccines, and
diagnostic tests for cats or dogs. Additional preventive care services—such as a
dental cleaning, urine tests, or X-rays—are included in Banfield’s higher-priced
OWPs. The OWPs include: 2 Puppy Plans (Early Care, and Early Care Plus),

3 Adult Dog Plans (Essential Wellness Adult Care, Active Prevention, and Special
Care), 2 Kitten Plans (Early Care, and Early Care Plus), and 3 Adult Cat Plans
(Esséntial Wellness Adult Care, Active Prevention, and Special Care). These OWPs
are advertised and operate in a substantially similar manner to one another, with
minor variations in service options. |

7. At the check-in counters, Banfield service representatives heavily
promote the OWPs. At or next to each in-store check-in counter, Banfield
disseminates a brochure and price sheet advertising OWPs for dogs and a very
similar brochure and price sheet advertising OWPs for cats. Through its in-store
representatives and print advertising, Banfield promises deep savings and discounts
available under each OWP. Banfield also advertises OWP savings and discounts
through invoices and correspondence to clients.

8. For at least the past four years, however, Banfield has misrepresented—
and continues to misrepresent—the nature and amount of savings and discounts to be
realized through the purchase and use of OWPs. In this regard, for each OWP,
Banfield advertises a monthly payment plan that purportedly entitles clients to

minimum savings off of regular costs for preventive pet care products and services
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plus fixed discounts on additional products and services sought by OWP customers.
Banfield, however, simply does not provide the promised savings and discounts.

0. In particular, under the OWPs, Banfield promises substantial minimum
savings on preventive pet care (e.g., more than $600/yr savings with the base-level
dog plan, for percentage savings of more than 50% vs. regular costs). Banfield also
promises that the OWP customer will receive an additional discount on Banfield’s
other pet care products and services not covered under the plan (e.g., an additional
10% off with the base-level adult dog plan).

10.  Under each OWP, Banfield promises savings and discounts in exchange
for a one-time membership fee (e.g., $49.95) plus monthly payments (e.g.,
$31.95/mth for a base level adult dog plan). Banfield also communicates orally and
in written invoices and client renewal letters that OWP clients will receive pet care
savings each visit and/or each month.

11.  Nonetheless, Banfield misrepresents, conceals, and fails to fully
disclose the warped service assumptions and inflated pricing scheme on which the
purported savings and discounts are based.

12.  Banfield promises that OWP customers always get the services they pay
for, and Banfield advertises deep savings at every visit and during each month that
the client owns an OWP. In reality, the savings begin to evaporate when the OWP
client does not need or cannot use one or more of the bundled products and/or
services under the plan. Moreover, the advertised savings cannot be achieved each
visit or each moﬁth, as Banfield effectively represents. Rather, the OWP client first
would need to use an uncertain number and variety of Banfield pet care products and
services over the course of an entire plan year. Meanwhile, Banfield overstates its
regular fees and tacks on miscellaneous fees and markups, which misrepresents the

ultimate savings and discounts earned by OWP clients.
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13.  Pet care providers should put the welfare of pets ahead of corporate
proﬁts. Unfortunately, Banfield places a high priority on achieving an Average
Patient Charge (also known as “Average Per-Client Charge” or “APC”). In an effort
to increase the Average Patient Charge, Banfield uses deceptive and coercive tactics
to sell additional pet care products and services to OWP clients. Among other
things, Banfield systematically orders extra diagnostic tests and medicatibons for
OWP clients in order to boost the Average Patient Charge. These upselling efforts
compel the OWP client to spend money he or she would not have otherwise spent
and wipe out the savings and discounts promised under the OWPs.

14.  Upon information and belief, Banfield routinely markets deceptive
savings on OWPs and discounts under OWPs via staff representations to consumers,
in-store print advertising, and client invoices. Plaintiff is also informed and believes
that Banfield disseminates this deceptive marketing to consumers throughout
California and nationwide.

15. Banfield’s marketing alters consumer perceptions regarding the nature
and value of the OWPs. Reasonable consumers expect that they actually will receive
the advertised savings on OWPs and discounts under OWPs. In reality, through
deceptive advertising and unfair sales tactics, Banfield induces consumers to
purchase and retain OWPs and to overpay for Banfield’s pet care products and
services offered thereunder.

16. Upon information and belief, thousands of California and nationwide
consumers have been victims of Banfield’s deceptive marketing of OWPs and
corresponding unfair sales tactics. Banfield knows or reasonably should know that
its marketing of OWPs (and the pet care products and services offered thereunder) is
and was deceptive, unfair and unlawful.

17.  Atall relevant times, Banfield has been under a duty to Plaintiff and

other similarly situated consumers to disclose the truth about the purported savings
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and discounts offered through the purchase of OWPs, and to abstain from deceptive
and coercive upselling of additional pet care products and services to OWP clients.

18.  The true facts about the value of the OWPs, and the pet care products
and services sold thereunder, would be material to a reasonable consumer.
Therefore, consumer reliance upon Banfield’s misrepresentations and omissions can
and should be presumed as a matter of law.

19. At the time Plaintiff purchased and renewed OWPs from Banfield, and
at the time he obtained pet care products and services under the OWPs, Plaintiff
actually relied upon Banfield’s representations about OWP savings and discounts,
and the value of the underlying products and services. Plaintiff and other similarly
situated consumers were likely to be misled, and they reasonably and justifiably
relied to their detriment on Banfield’s misrepresentations and omissions of material
facts about the savings, discounts, products, and services to be provided through tile
purchase and use of OWPs.

20. IfBanfield had disclosed the truth about the advertised savings,
discounts, products, and services to be provided through the purchase and use of
OWPs, then Plaintiff either would not have purchased the OWPs and/or the pet care
products or services thereunder, or Plaintiff would not have paid as much as he did
for them.

21. Asaresult of its deceptive marketing and unfair sales tactics, Banfield
has generated substantial revenues from the sale of OWPs and the sale of additional
pet care products and services to OWP clients.

22. Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated,
seeks damages, restitution and injunctive relief to put an end to Banfield’s ongoing

deceptive marketing and unfair business practices.
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II. JURISDICTION

23.  This Court has diversity jurisdiction over this action pursuant to
28 U.S.C. § 1332(d) because the amount in controversy for the Class exceeds
$5,000,000, and Plzﬁntiff and other putative Class members are citizens of a different
state than Defendant.

24.  This Court has personal jurisdiction over Plaintiff Gregory T. Pero
because he resides in California and submits to the Court’s jurisdiction. This Court
has personal jurisdiction over the Defendant because it conducts substantial business
in the Central District and throughout the State of California.

25.  Venue is proper in this Court because Defendant sold its OWPs within
the Central District of California, and a substantial number of the transactions at
issue in this Complaint occurred within this District.

III. PARTIES

26.  Plaintiff Gregory T. Pero is and was at all relevant times a citizen of the
State of California, residing in the City of Anaheim Hills.

27. Plaintiff has purchased from Banfield, and has used and renewed,
several OWPs over the course of the past sixteen years, including purchases and
renewals of dog and cat OWPs paid for over the past four years, and the purchase of
pet care products and services under those OWPs.

28.  Plaintiff purchased each OWP for personal, family, and household
purposes. Plaintiff saw and heard Banfield’s representations that its OWPs provided
substantial savings and discounts off of the regular costs of Banfield’s pet care
products and services. Plaintiff relied on such representations in deciding to
purchase, use, and renew his OWPs, and the pet care products and services sold

thereunder, in order to care for his pets.
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29.  Plaintiff also purchased additional pet care products and services from
Banfield, including medications and blood tests, in response to the unfair sales
tactics described herein. |

30. Plaintiff Pero either would not have purchased OWPs from Banfield,
and/or the pet care products or services that he obtained thereunder, had Banfield
properly disclosed the true nature and amount of the purported savings and
discounts, and properly disclosed the true facts about its upselling, and/or he would
not have paid as much money for the OWPs or for the products and services sold
thereunder.

31. Plaintiff does not assert any personal injury claim to his pets or himself
in this action as a result of using Defendant’s OWPs or other products or services.

32. Defendant Medical Management International, Inc., d.b.a. “Banfield Pet
Hospital” (also known as Banfield, The Pet Hospital, and formerly known as
“VetSmart Pet Hospital” or “VetSmart™), is a Delaware Corporation headquartered
in Portland, Oregon.

33.  Plaintiff is informed and believes that Mars, Inc. purchased a majority
interest in Banfield in or about 2007, and that PetSmart, Inc. acquired a minority
interest in Banfield.. |

34.  Presently, Banfield operates more than 800 pet hospital outlets across
the country, with at least dozens of Banfield outlets located in PetSmart stores

throughout California. '
IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

A. Banfield Advertises Wellness Plans as Providing Substantial Minimum
savings and Discounts on Pet Care Products and Services.

35. Banfield is one of the nation’s largest pet care service providers due to
its partnership with PetSmart and outlet locations inside of PetSmart stores.
36. Banfield staff members aggressively promote the OWPs to consumers

who bring their pets to Banfield. In the process, staff members emphasize the

-7 -
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substantial savings and discounts to be achieved under the OWP. In fact, Banfield
employees are highly incentivized to push the OWPs on consumers, to pack all
preventive pet care into two visits per year, and to push additional products and
services each visit as a means to increase their internal Average Patient Charge.

37. Banfield provides an OWP brochure and price sheet at each in-store
outlet counter or “hospital” (for dogs and for cats). The brochure identifies the pet
care services to be provided under each OWP. “Each Plan includes: Unlimited free
office visits and physical exams; comprehensive exams by a licensed veterinarian;
high quality vaccines; early screening for serious illnesses; convenient drop-offs and
evening and weekend hours.”

38. According to the in-store brochures: “Unlike insurance, where you pay
for coverage you may never use, Optimum Wellness Plans always provide the
services you pay for.” [Emphasis added] In reality, as discussed herein, the OWPs
routinely fail to provide the particular services paid for at the discounted prices being
advertised by Banfield. Indeed, Banfield locations may not even be suited with the
proper supplies or equipment to provide each of the services that OWP clients pay
for. |

39. According to the Banfield brochure regarding the basic OWP for dogs:
“Consistent preventive care is essential, even with young healthy dogs. This
Essential Wellness Plan establishes and manages baselines of wellness information
to help keep your dog healthy.”

40. The OWP service options for dogs are broken out as follows (See

Figures 1-4):
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[Figure 1]
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Every dog needs a plan. Consistant
preventive care is essential, pven with
young, healthy dogs, This Essentizd
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[Figure 2]
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[Figure 3|
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41.  In particular, the OWP price-sheets set forth the purported “Minimum
Annual Savings” on pet care services included in the OWP for dogs. Figure 5
below reflects a price sheet for the dog OWPs printed in or about January 2013 and

disseminated thereafter in Southern California:
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[Figure 5]

~13 -




Caf

0 NN N R WM

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

e 8:13-cv-01749-JLS-AN Document 1 Filed 11/05/13 Page 15 of 31 Page ID #:15

42.  Figure 6 below reflects a price sheet for dog OWPs printed in or about
August 2013 and disseminated in Southern California (also setting forth purported

“Minimum Annual Savings” on pet care services included in the OWP for dogs):

& ahesgting,
Agtaneiasi
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43.  According to the sample price sheet in Figure 5, a consumer purchasing
the Active Prevention OWP for one adult dog would pay a one-time Membership
Fee of $49.95, plus a Monthly Payment of $39.95, for an Annual Cost of $479.40,
reflecting “Minimum Annual Savings” of $1,008.61.

44.  The purported fninimum savings reflected on Banfield price sheets are
false and/or misleading. As a general practice prior to purchase, Banfield does not
supply consumers with retail price lists or similar information about all of the
individual costs used to calculate the advertised savings and discounts.

45.  In truth, many OWP clients save nothing and others save far less than
promised. The savings depend on Banfield providing bundled pet care products and
services to OWP clients over the course of an entire plan year. Banfield, however,
does not actually provide all of the bundled products and services to OWP clients
and/or the OWP clients do not need all such products or services, and as a result, the
purported savings evaporate. Importantly, if the OWP client cancels during the plan
year, any savings may be wiped out, leaving the OWP client with little more than a
history of overpayments. The advertised minimum annual savings also ignore the
costs of unnecessary pet care products and services upsold to OWP clients as well as
bogus “hospitalization” and “professional service” fees that Banfield assesses on top
of other charges for services supposedly rendered.

46. The cat OWP advertising is substantially similar to the dog OWP
advertising. According to the Banfield brochure regarding the basic OWP for cats:
“Consistent preventive care is essential, even with young healthy cats. This
Essential Wellness Plan establishes and manages baselines of wellness information
to help keep your cat healthy.”

47. The OWP service options for cats are broken out as follows (See

Figures 7-10):

-15 -




Ca

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

e 8:13-cv-01749-JLS-AN Document 1 Filed 11/05/13 Page 17 of 31 Page ID #:17

[Figure 7]

-16 -




< T N> NV S UR UC R N S

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

e 8:13-cv-01749-JLS-AN Document 1 Filed 11/05/13

[Figure 8]

-17 -

Page 18 of 31 Page ID #:18




Caj

0 N AN kW

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

e 8:13-cv-01749-JLS-AN Document 1 Filed 11/05/13

[Figure 9]

- 18-

Page 19 of 31 Page ID #:19




Cape 8:13-cv-01749-JLS-AN Document 1 Filed 11/05/13 Page 20 of 31 Page ID #:20

| Special Care

often older cats or breeds with
special nepds require proactive
management of chronic disease.

| The Special Care Plan 15 designed
specifically for this group.

0 3 N AW N

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

48.

P nckemia Soling insunogefirieny uirus, hearksnm: tela ar%d

[Figure 10]

The OWP price-sheets set forth the purported “Minimum Annual
Savings” on pet care services included in the OWP for cats, which are false or

misleading in the same manner as the advertised pricing for dog OWPs. Figure 11
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below reflects a price sheet for the cat OWPs printed in or about January 2013 and

disseminated thereafter in Southern California:
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[Figure 11]
49.  Figure 12 below reflects a price sheet for the cat OWPs printed in or

about August 2013 and disseminated thereafter in Southern California:
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el i

Optimum Wellness Plans.
Your cat’s prescription for good health.

Banfield
PET HOSPITAL

OYE e T

[Figure 12]

Banfield also advertises and promotes purported savings on its invoices
to OWP clients. A standard invoice, for instance, includes a column for “Regular
Fees”, a column for “Your fees”, and a summary dollar amount of Wellness Plan

discounts to date resulting in “lifetime savings” as stated therein.

-21-
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51. The advertised savings are false or misleading in multiple ways. While
Banfield reports accumulated savings with each visit, no savings actually accumulate
until the end of a plan year, if at all. Furthermore, Banfield double counts OWP
membership fees and OWP monthly fees as if they were “regular fees” that would be
incurred without the purchase of an OWP. That is not the case. By including OWP
fees in the regular fee column, Banfield artificially increases the purported regular
fees, and thereby inflates the purported savings. Further, the advertised savings
ignore the costs of upsold products and services, and factor out improper charges
such as “hospitalization” charges and “professional service charges”, which are
administrative tack-on fees that should not be assessed on top of OWP fees.

52. Banfield also advertises and promotes purported savings via OWP client
' renewal letters. These form letters describe a substantial percentage savings (e.g.
50% savings) off of regular retail costs. The advertised savings, however, are false
or misleading insofar as: (i) they actually accumulate at the end of a plan year, if at
all; (ii) they ignore the costs of unnecessary pet care products and services that
Banfield upsells to OWP clients, (iii) they factor out improper administrative fees
(including “hospitalization” and “professional service” charges), and (iv) they do not
take into account cancellation costs.

53. Plaintiff is informed and believes that substantially similar marketing
representations about minimum and/or percentage savings are made orally by staff
members and distributed in writing to OWP clients throughout California and the
country.

54. For each OWP, Banfield charges a one-time membership fee—for
example, $49.95 in California for first pets—plus ongoing monthly payments.
Pricing may vary over time and/or according to the company’s pricing markets in the

United States.

-22 -
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55.  In September 2013, for a first puppy dog in California (i.e., under six
months old), Banfield generally reported base monthly payments at $32.95 (i.e., the
Early Care OWP) and monthly payments under the Early Care Plus OWP at about

$39.95. For an adult dog in California, Banfield generally reported base monthly

payments at $31.95.(i.e., the Essential Wellness OWP), monthly payments for the
mid-tier OWP at $39.95 (i.e., the Active Prevention OWP), and monthly payments
for the top-tier OWP at $49.95 (i.e., the Special Care OWP).

56.  In September 2013, for a kitten in California (i.e., under 6 months),
Banfield generally reported base monthly payments at $30.95 (i.e., the Early Care
OWP), and monthly payments for the Early Care Plus OWP at $35.95. For an adult
cat in California, Banfield generally reported base monthly payments at $22.95 (i.e.,
the Essential Wellness OWP), monthly payments for the mid-tier OWP at $29.95
(i.e., the Active Prevention OWP), and monthly payments for the top-tier OWP at
$39.95 (i.e., the Special Care OWP).

57. Banfield promotes all Wellness Plans for dogs and cats as providing
savings of about 45%-70% off the regular costs for preventive pet care services, plus
additional OWP discounts on most other Banfield pet care products and services of
about 5%-20%.

58.  After credit card enrollment, Banfield may provide the new OWP client
with a copy of a standard OWP agreement. In the terms and conditions thereunder,
Banfield asserts that clients are committed to each OWP for successive one-year
terms that automatically renew or upgrade unless cancelled. ‘

B.  Banfield Deceptively Markets Substantial Savings and Discounts under
OWPs, and Unfairly Upsells Other Pet Care Products and Services to
OWP C(lients.

59.  Inno uncertain terms, for each OWP at issue, and at least for the past
four years preceding the filing of the Complaint, Banfield has promised substantial

minimum savings and percentage savings on preventive pet care products and
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services and significant discounts on most other pet care products and services
offered at Banfield.

60. Yet, Banfield misrepresents the purported savings and discounts under
each OWP in the following ways:

a. The promised amount of savings simply does not add up;

b. In addition to certain basic preventive care, Banfield charges
OWP clients for pet care products and services that they don’t receive and/or don’t
need;

c. Banfield markets the OWPs as if they provide savings and
discounts per visit and/or per month, when in fact, savings and discounts only
accumulate at the end of a plan year, if at all;

d. Banfield inflates the regular costs that it uses to calculate the
purported savings and discounts under OWPs, which costs include unjustified fees
and markups on top of OWP membership charges; and

e. Banfield conceals, obscures, and wrongly imposes cancellation-
related charges.

61. Inits core advertising, Banfield promises that the OWPs provide
essential preventive care and “always pro?ide the services you pay for.” In fact,
Banfield effectively charges OWP clients for unprovided and unneeded pet care
products and services.

62. In order to meet Average Patient Charges, Banfield routinely orders a
variety of diagnostic tests on OWP pets (blood tests, fecal tests, ear swabs, etc.)
whether the pets need those tests or not.

63.  Over the past several years, Banfield has developed an aggressive
method of scheduling comprehensive exams to fit the company’s business model

(using frequent personal contacts and/or in-person pressure tactics to schedule pet
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exams). Banfield strives to herd enough pets together at the same time in order to
shuttle them through in a highly profitable manner.

64. Banfield attributes part of the savings advertised under the OWPs to
vaccinations that are not requested, appropriate, or available to OWP clients. For
example, Banfield bases the advertised savings in part on the cost of two (2) Lyme
vaccinations for an adult dog in Southern California, although Banfield normally
does not and/or should not provide those two vaccinations.

65. Banfield also attributes part of the savings advertised under the OWPs
to health care certificates (i.e., certificates for interstate traveling with pets). Yet,
Plaintiff is informed and believes that these certificates are not routinely provided
and often go unused. In fact, Banfield does not even meaningfully inform OWP
clients that it attributes part of the OWP savings to such certificates.

66. Banfield purportedly conditions cancellation of an OWP on payment of
retail fees for services used up to the cancellation date. OWP cancellations wipe out
prior savings and discounts. Yet, Banfield does not disclose the retail fees for OWP
services in its upfront advertising.

67. For OWPs that include a dental cleaning and pre-cleaning blood test,
Banfield effectively conditions the advertised savings and services on a future
event—namely, the blood test result must appear normal at the time of the cleaning.
Otherwise, Banfield will postpone the cleaning and charge the client for an
additional pre-cleaning blood test, or Banfield will cancel the cleaning.

68.  Since OWPs include unprovided and/or unneeded pet care products and
services bundled with essential preventive care, the overall OWP savings are
misstated. Likewise, the savings are misstated to the extent that OWP clients cannot
use or otherwise do not receive all of the pet care products or services on which the
purported savings are based. As a general practice, Banfield does not provide

refunds for unused products and services.
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69. Furthermore, the purported savings are deceptive insofar as they do not
fully take into account: (i) the true costs of owning an OWP (i.e., membership,
monthly fees, additional fees and markups, etc.); and/or (ii) the fact that the
purported savings can only be earned after the client pays OWP fees for the entire
plan year (rather than per visit or per month).

70.  In order to pump up the Average Patient Charges, Banfield also charges
exhorbitant amounts to OWP clients for common pet medications. Consequently,
OWP clients end up overpaying for pet medications rather than receiving
medications at discounts vs true retail costs. Similarly, Banfield tacks on extra fees
and markups to lab tests (including hospitalization charges and internal markups on
lab tests performed outside of Banfield), which further inflates the purported savings
and discounts under the OWPs.

71.  Furthermore, when a client wants to cancel the OWP during the plan
year, Banfield may retroactively impose its full retail fees to date or assess a full
year’s worth of OWP payments. The harsh cancellation provisions—which apply
even when a pet dies during the plan year—tend to wipe out the advertised savings.
The cancellation provisions are doubly problematic insofar as Banfield overstates the
retail fees incurred at the outset of the relatioﬁship, a fact which further locks clients
into ongoing OWP commitments.

72.  Plaintiff is informed and believes that, as a matter of policy and
practice, Banfield trains its sales representatives and sets up its Computer system to
enroll consumers in the OWPs before Banfield provides a copy of an OWP
agreement. Only after the client provides Banfield with a credit card to be charged
for automatic enrollment purposes does Banfield provide the OWP agreement to the
client, if at all. This unfair, deceptive, and unlawful sales tactic is designed to induce
consumers to commit to the OWP before considering restrictions that severely

reduce the value of the purchased services.
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73.  After credit card enrollment (and often after the initial exam), Banfield
may provide the client with the OWP agreement, including the harsh and inequitable
cancellation provision in fine print. ,

74.  Plaintiff relied on Banfield’s marketing because, unlike Banfield,
Plaintiff did not have access to and knowledge of the services and retail costs on
which Banfield purportedly based the advertised savings and discounts. Nor did
Plaintiff have specialized knowledge about the pet care products and services being
sold.

75. At the time Plaintiff purchased his OWPs, he did not know that
Banfield’s advertised savings and discounts on pet care products and services were
false and/or misleading.

76.  In addition to the deceptively marketed savings and discounts, and as a
matter of policy and practice throughout at least the four years preceding the filing of
this Complaint, Banfield has employed unfair sales tactics to upsell additional pet
care products and services to OWP clients. |

77.  Moreover, at the time Plaintiff purchased his OWPs, he did not know
that Banfield was engaging in sales tactics designed to push pet care products and
services on OWP clients in order to achieve an Average Patient Charge.

78.  Consumers like Plaintiff must and do rely on pet care hospitals to
honestly describe their costs and savings, not to upsell unnecessary or overpriced

products and services, and to put the welfare of the pets ahead of corporate profits.

C. Former Banfield Employees and Clients Reveal How Banfield Pushes
OWPs, Upsells Pet Cgre Products and Services to OWP Clients, and Fails
to Dellver the Advertised Products and Services for the Advertised .
Discounted Prices.

79. - Online testimonials from former Banfield employees, including the

following examples, are telling:
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a) “[Constant] pressure from corporate to sell the more
expensive wellness plans. At one point we were being told
we need to ‘triple penetrate’ the clients for various types of
preventative plans. There is constant over scheduling of
exams and surgeries.”

b) “I was a very hardworking, dedicated employee who had
never received a written communication memo and
suddenly received two with in three months time for not
meeting the wellness plan precentage [sic] for the quarter. I
had no other option but to seek employment elsewhere as I
was imminently facing termination.”

c) “The corporate headquarters of this company only cares
about the bottom line. They gouge their clients, and expect
their employees to do the same.”

d) “I felt so sorry for our relief/new hire doctors because they
would put together a reasonable treatment plan for a Pet
(reasonable being what the pet needed no extras) and then
get berated that their APC (Average Patient Charge) was
below $140! Some would cave.in after multiple nasty
emails and phone calls, many moved on. I felt sorry for the
poor pets and clients. Its hard to respect a company who
doesn’t respect their clients.”

e) “Banfield has something called APC, average patient
charge. This is the figure that determines the success of
your hospital at the end of the day. Patient care = APC.

Bottom line.”
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f) “Constantly having to upsell unnecessary products and the
Wellness Plans.”

g) “You have to try and sell as many wellness plans as you
can and whatever monthly item corporate wants you to sell.
All the hospitals get ranked in their district so it’s always a
competition. . . .Some customers get annoyed when they’re
not on a plan and you ask them each visit if they want to
join. Each customer is seen as a dollar sign, your goal is to
make them spend more than $100 each visit.”

h) “I have been a vet tech with Banfield for six years. It
began as my dream job. . . Then we were taken over, by all

- things, a giant candy corporation. This made perfect sense
of course -- making chocolate and caring for pets is
obviously a natural transition. That is when it began a rapid
downbhill slide toward the changing of priorities to the all-
mighty dollar in place of pet care.”

80.  These employee testimonials (which are available online at sites such as
glassdoor.com) reflect how Banfield upsells unnecessary pet care services (like
needless diagnostic tests) and costly medications (like overpricedvantibiotics,_
heartworm medicatibns, and flea medications) at inflated prices to a captive
audience, while routinely failing to provide the comprehensive preventive care that
Banfield promised to provide in accordance with its advertising.

81.  Plaintiff is informed and believes that the Banfield Petware computer
system automatically recommends extra diagnostic tests and/or medications for pets
such that OWP clients incur additional charges that otherwise could have been

reduced or avoided.
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82. Plaintiff is also informed and believes that, as a matter of policy and
practice, Banfield staff are trained to achieve an Average Patient Charge (e.g., north
of $100 per visit) and thus to induce OWP clients to pay for pet care products and
services that are not needed and/or not provided.

83.  Plaintiff, like other OWP clients, was unfairly induced to purchase
unnecessary diagnostic tests and medications for his pets without receiving full

advance disclosures. Plaintiff could have avoided those charges entirely or gone

_elsewhere and paid less.

84. Like the former Banfield employee statements, there are a huge number
of former client complaints about Banfield practices reflecting how Banfield upsells
unnecessary services and medications and fails to deliver the advertised preventive
care services for the advertised discounted prices. Many hundreds if not thousands of
client complaints are available online at consumer sites such as consumeraffairs.com,
consumerboard.com, and yelp.com, and at the Better Business Bureau. Several
examples follow:

a) “I've been taking my dog to Banfield for years now. I got
the Wellness Plan after telling me it would save money. It
never did. Every time I take the dog to Banfield, I'm told
this or that needs to be done and some of the dumbest
reasons why. I'm going to be honest here good people, I
work for Petsmart (number of years). Don't take your
animal to Banfield, they will take you for every penny you
have and try and scare you into buying everything and
anything.”

b) “...I personally feel like they prey on owners who care
deeply for their pets by quoting high retail costs and then

using that as a means to get people to sign up for wellness
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plans. . . . How many people REALLY make full use of the
plan, except annual check up, shots, emergencies?'So you
either pay ridiculous fees for the services you DO use, or
you pay a seemingly less ridiculous fee for services you
don’t fully use. The fact that they can discount everything
with the wellness plan should show how much they
overcharge in the first place.”

“There have been multiple mistakes in the three years I
have had a wellness contract with Banfield, but this was the
final straw. I am done!! I cancelled my contract for both
my dogs with Banfield Pet Hospital, but of course they
would not give me any sort of refund on the remaining time
on the contract.”

“.. .Banfield[] inflates their prices so they 'appear’ to givé
you a discount because you are on their wellness plan. I
have checked with other vets to verify this happens. Their
prices are out of line with others in the same business.”
“...They recommended an extraction and dental cleaning. I
could not afford the procedure, so they suggested their
‘wellness plan’ to bring the cost down to something I could
afford right away. They told me it was urgent to get him in
right away so they ‘fit him into their schedule’the next day.
Of course when they had him under anesthesia, they called
to tell me he needed two more teeth extracted at the cost of
another $150. The original tooth fell out on the table, but I

was still charged for that extraction.”
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1 f) “[The wellness program] is a complete waste of money.
2 They encourage you to come in and then overcharge
3 everything that’s not on the plan. So not worth it!”
4 g) “I ended up having to call the Banfield Complaint Center,
5 and was pretty much told that since I signed something, I
6 was stuck in the plan. I explained to them that I was never
7 told anything about it being renewed and that I was able to
8 cancel this. . . . Also, they up-charge like a car dealership.”
9 h) “[E}very visit I never feel confident in their advice or
10 prescription, mostly they seem to have an agenda that I
11 leave owing them money in some way since I'm on the
12 Wellness Plan and not paying that day. Getting me to buy
13 additional services is obviously a high priority.”
14 1) “Please, I am trying to make others aware to NOT purchase
15 the Banfield Animal Hospital Plan! I took my new puppy
16 into their hospital for his first visit to make sure he was
17 healthy and to begin his shots. They sold me their wellness
18 plan, and I signed up because I trusted they would deliver
19 those services. Unfortunately, that HAS NOT happened.
20 On both the 2nd and 3rd visits, they called me on my cell
21 to explain they had emergencies and were running terribly
22 behind. Both times, appointments were made as per the
23 wellness plan, but I ONLY saw a vet ONE time, and that
24 was on the 1st visit, when the plan was sold to me. I paid
25 based on the plan’s breakdown of visits or ‘exarhs’. The
26 only services performed were shots.”
27
28
-32-
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j) “If your pet needs medications, the prices they charge are
inflated by 500%. I told them that I would get one of the
prescriptions they wanted to charge me $53 for at my
pharmacy. I paid $12 at the pharmacy. This is an ongoing
practice of theirs.”

k) “I bought Wellness plan for my elderly dog. I specifically
asked if I could cancel at any time and the answer was yes.
This is totally untrue, as they will continue to charge you
until the year is up. They try to tell you that the expenses
you racked up for services are far more than what you owe,
so you will have to pay the difference. . . . The amounts
that they charge for their services are far and above the
normal rates than a neighborhood vet charges. How do I
know this? My dog went to a neighborhood vet for the first
11 years of his life, as does his sister.”

1) “The wellness plans are a total sham - every visit, I've had
to fight to get the vet to perform the most routine tests that
are promised in the plan, and even then, they find
loopholes to charge you... They charge several times the
regular rate for meds, etc. so you end up paying for what
you would have if you'd gone to a reputable vet.”

m) “Bottom line, charges that may be discounted as part of the
Wellness Plan and what and how they tack on fees is
misleading, and frankly bad business. Did you know that if
you bring your pet in for a free teeth cleaning, the
automatic blood work that they do is only covered if in fact

they actually do the teeth cleaning. If the blood work shows
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additional potential health issues and the teeth cleaning is
then suggested to not be done (i.e. anesthesia may be
risky), the automatic blood work charges will be charged to
you. Even when asked what my charges were in the
morning when I dropped my cat off, no mention of this was
made. Evidently, it is in the fine print of what I signed as |
rushed off to work in the early morning. Regardless, the
principle of the matter is that it is misleading.The free teeth
cleaning cost me $176.00.”

“I went in with my dog and waited for over an hour. He
was supposed to be seen by the vet for his wellness visit.
They were supposed to take his blood and do other tests for
his checkup. The nurse saw him, took his temperature, etc.
She tried to take his blood, and she was not able to do so. I
waited in the office for over an hour and the vet never saw
my dog. . .They charged my account for tests, and for a vet
visit. The vet never saw my dog, only the girl (nurse).”
“We currently have a Banfield wellness plan for our four
pets. We moved to Maine and Banfield does not provide
services in Maine. However, they will not allow us to
cancel the plan (even though two are new and two were
just renewed). We have to keep paying for four wellness
plans and we cannot even use their facilities. Also, one of
our pets passed away the day after Christmas. We had a
wellness plan for this beloved pet which we only renewed a
couple of months ago so we have barely benefited from the

plan. Unfortunately, Banfield will not cancel the plan so we
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have to continue paying for the plan for a pet that is no
longer living and Banfield can no longer treat.”

“Be careful before you purchase this plan. They will claim
it saves you money over time, but it does not. First of all,
they mark up their medications about 400% to make up for
their free unlimited office visits. You can get the same RX
at Walmart for one-tenth of the price. Secondly, they tell
you they will give you a 10% discount on all other
services; however, my son who doesn’t have the plan took
his dog in and paid the same price I did for the same
service.”

“After my dog got heartworms, my vet suggested this plan.
I ended up still having to pay over $1,000 for treatfnent
even though they swore I was getting a deal. After all the
treatments and they said my dog was clear, she died a week
later. I called to cancel the plan and you have to pay the
full 12 months so I’m stuck paying 6 more months for a
dog I don’t have.”

“I called Banfield corporate to report what I felt was bad
business practices and complaining about this plan they
sell. I also spoke with the division that sold this plan and
asked about the diagnostic blood work. They tried to tell
me it was only once, period. Nothing in the brochure and
contract state that. And the items that are listed that are

limited all specify time limits.”
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s) “I signed up for the $28 puppy plan and it’s a waste. I tried

to get my puppy sprayed twice and they keep giving
' reasons why they can’t.”

t) “I'have four dogs, all on the Wellness Scams. Every time I
would go there, it was a constant push to try to sell me
unnecessary care above and beyond the already over-
inflated prices on their plans. For example, somehow, the
only dog whose blood work was not covered on a
particular visit would be the one that they would have a
problem that needed to be looked at. Banfield is like an
assembly line with the only goal they have is to take more
money out of your pocket.”

u) “[]I called Banfield and they tell me that I owe them $400
for the rest of the plan. I argued with the woman and she
said this isn’t a insurance plan but a payment plan. She said
they have already done over $800 work on the dog. They

- only gave her shots when I was there, 2 each time for a
total of 6. I said what were they giving her, gold in the
shots? This company is a total rip-off and total swindlers.”

v) “Finally, I managed to cancel the plans for my animals
after 2 years of attempts! Even though I had the Banfield

| plans in place, I receive better service and it was still
cheaper to take my animals to a local private vet practice.”

w) “I was sold 3 plans for my animals. After I was sold the
plans, I was told that they could not clean my 2 cats’ teeth -
because of a heart murmur that was determined at the

initial visit. The reason I signed them up for the plans was
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because they deceived me and talked me into buying 2
dental plans for my cats.”

x) “The Wellness Plan is a joke! The service is subpar! The
staff is rude! The access to care is usually unavailable or
hard to get! It's nothing like the promises that are made, it's
more like a bait and switch once you've signed up!”

y) “They will reel you in with "wellness plans". If only the
value was truly there! . . . When the time comes to count on
them though, the additional charges will start appearing.
“This’ is not covered, ‘that’ is not covered.”

85. Banfield engages in unfair upselling practices when, for example, it
recommends medications during a covered visit, charges grossly inflated prices for
those medications, and fails to make clear that the OWP client may pufchase those
medications elsewhere (and at a fraction of the price).

86. Banfield also engages in unfair upselling when it sells additional
products and/or services during a covered office visit, but neglects to inform the
client in advance about the additional charges to be assessed, or when it tacks on
unjustified add-on fees and/or markups.

D.  Plaintiff’s History of OWP Purchases.

87. In 1997, Plaintiff had two older Golden Retrievers named “Alex” &
“Chelsea” and a grey tabby kitten named “Tony”. Plaintiff and his wife took Alex
and Chelsea to a Banfield outlet (called VetSmart at the time) inside a PetSmart store
in the Anaheim Hills, California area. Plaintiff was first introduced to Banfield’s
Optimum Wellness Plans at that time.

88. The OWP brochures advertised significant savings on routine services
as well as discounts on other services and products, while proactively maintaining

the health of your pets. Plaintiff purchased OWPs for Alex, Chelsea, and Tony in
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light of the prospect of substantial savings on prevehtive pet care. Alex and Chelsea
passed away in 2001.

89.  In or about 1999-2000, Plaintiff and his wife adopted a young female
calico cat named “Ginger” and purchased an OWP for her. That same year, they
also adopted a stray orange tabby named “Wiley Coyote”. Plaintiff also purchased
an OWP for Wiley.

90. - In the 2001-2002 timeframe, Plaintiff and his wife adopted two six
week old Golden Retrievers puppies about a year apart from each other named Jake
and Liberty. Plaintiff purchased an OWP for each puppy.

91. From Plaintiff’s perspective, since 2007, Plaintiff has observed
considerable negative changes at Banfield in terms of staffing, operations, and
customer support. As time went by, Plaintiff also believes that the better
veterinarians at his local Banfield would be gone within 6 months.

92.  Around the time that Liberty was 5-6 years old, she developed a
cancerousv tumor. Veterinary Surgical Specialists (VCG) in Tustin, CA removed the
tumor. Plaintiff had to take Liberty to VCG versus Banfield because ultra sound is
an important method of detecting the return of cancer cells and Banfield did not have
ultra sound. Subsequently, Plaintiff paid out of pocket for regular visits to VCG.
Moreover, vaccines were not appropriate for Liberty, since they would have an
adverse impact on a dog’s immune system.

93.  In or about 2007, Plaintiff took Wiley to the Yorba Regional Animal
Hospital (“Y.R.A.H.”) located next to Plaintiff’s local Banfield in the City of Yorba
Linda, California (the Banfield outlet was closed). Y.R.A.H. conducted a course of
tests and found a tumor located on the outside of Wiley’s heaft. The tumor was at an
advanced stage and had gone undetected for some time.

94.  In August 2009, Plaintiff received a letter from Banfield informing him
of the upcbming OWP renewal that would take effect in September 2009. The letter
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identified the core benefits of OWPs including essential preventive pet care that
provides cost savings of more than 50%.

95. InJanuary 2010, Plaintiff and his wife rescued a cat named “Emily”.
They promptly signed her up to the OWP. The fee that day for signing her up was a
$54.95 one-time Membership fee and a $22.95 monthly fee. That day, Banfield
performed a comprehensive feline exam (which included an Ophthalmic exam and
Otoscopic exam). In March of 2010, Plaintiff took Emily in for an office visit.
Banfield ran a number of tests and then recommended that Plaintiff take her to an
eye specialist. The Banfield invoice for that appointment included a line item for
Ophthalmic Ointment and two other line items labeled “Professional Service Fee —
Per Minute”. The two “Professional Service Fee” line items totaled $222.87 and the
total bill was $334.49. When Plaintiff took Emily to the eye specialist, he learned
that her retinas were detached and she was effectively blind and no amount of eye
ointment or “Professional Service Fee — Per Minute” was going to change that fact.

96. In December 2011, Plaintiff and his wife rescued a kitten named
“Petey”, and Plaintiff purchased an OWP for him. At this point in time, Plaintiff had
six (6) pets in total each on a Banfield OWP.

97. In August 2012, Jake became very sick and Plaintiff brought him into
Banfield for an office visit. Banfield ran a number of diagnostic tests and x-rays.
The Banfield vets indicated that there appeared to be something around his chest on
the x-ray, but they couldn’t identify what it was. Again, Plaintiff needed to take his
pet to another pet hospital where they had ultra sound equipment.

98. Plaintiff took Jake to Southern California Veterinary Specialty Hospital,
Irvine, CA. They »began another round of tests (including ultra sound) and
determined that he was hemorrhaging near his heart. By the end of the week, Jake’s
condition deteriorated, and he had to be euthanized. At the time, Banfield staff
assured Plaintiff that they would take care of the termination of the OWP as to Jake.
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99.  Within days, Liberty got sick too, and Plaintiff immediately brought her
into Banfield. Again, Banfield ran a number of diagnostic tests and x-ray. Banfield
confirmed there was some type of mass around her abdomen, but again, directed
Plaintiff to go to another hospital for additional diagnosis. Liberty’s condition
continued to rapidly decline as Plaintiff took her to Yorba Regional Animal Hospital.
The vet at Yorba Regional promptly determined that she was hemorrhaging
internally. As with Jake only days before, Liberty needed to be euthanized.

100. Plaintiff’s neighbor’s vet had diagnosed rat poisoning as the root cause
of injury to the neighbor’s dog who had died during the same week that both Jake
and Liberty had died. A few weeks later, Plaintiff’s wife found remains of a green
brick of rat poison while gardening in their backyard.

101. In or about August 2012, Plaintiff and his wife adopted a couple of
Golden Retriever puppies named “Wilson” & “Annie”. Plaintiff purchased OWPs
for both of them.

102. Banfield initially continued to bill Plaintiff for monthly charges on the
OWP for Jake and the OWP for Liberty after each dog had died.

103. After speaking with Plaintiff, Banfield corporate personnel stopped
éharging Plaintiff for additional monthly fees for Liberty. Nevertheless, Banfield
continued to charge Plaintiff for the remainder 0f an entire year of monthly fees for
Jake.

104. Plaintiff renewed each of the OWPs that he purchased each year during
his pets’ lives. He believed that—under the OWPs that he purchased—he was
providing essential health care for his pets while achieving substantial cost savings
from Banfield.

105. Over the course of his pets’ lives, Plaintiff paid out of pocket for

numerous blood and diagnostic tests, x-rays, medications, dental cleaning, and more.
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One or more of the Banfield vets pushed Plaintiff to pay for diagnostic tests for.

which there was no apparent need and/or value.

E.  Plaintiff and Members of the Class Suffered Injury as a Result of
Banfield’s Misconduct.

106. Based on Banfield’s deceptive marketing and unfair sales tactics,
Plaintiff purchased Banfield OWPs, and he paid for pet care products and services
thereunder believing that he would receive the savings, discounts, products and
services as represented by Banfield.

107. The OWPs did not conform, however, to Banfield’s representations
because, in fact, purchase of the pet care products and services thereunder did not
proVide the promised minimum savings and discounts. Furthermore, Banfield
induced Plaintiff and other OWP clients to purchase additional pet care products and
services that were not needed and/or that were provided at inflated prices.

108. Plaintiff and members of the Class paid more for Banfield’s OWPs, and
for the pet care products and services purchased thereunder, than they otherwise
would have paid had they not been misled by Banfield’s false and misleading
representations and material omissions, and/or had they not been induced by
Banfield’s unfair sales tactics to purchase additional pet care products and services.

109. For these reasons, Banfield’s OWPs and the pet care products and
services purchased thereunder were worth less to Plaintiff and members of the Class
than what they otherwise would have paid.

110. Based on the false statements, misrepresentations, material omissions,
and unfair sales tactics described herein, Plaintiff and members of the Class were
induced to and did purchase OWPs, and additional pet care products and services
thereunder, instead of saving their money or purchasing competing pet care products

or services.
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111. Instead of receiving OWPs that provided the promised minimum
savings on comprehensive preventive pet care, Plaintiff and members of the Class
received restrictive plans that did hot provide the advertised savings and discounts,
that induced clients to pay for unprovided and/or unneeded pet care products and
services, and that locked them into costly, year-long, automatically-renewing,
purchasing commitments without full and adequate disclosure or relevant terms.

112. Plaintiff and members of the Class lost money as a result of Banfield’s
deception and unfair business practices insofar as: (i) OWP clients were denied
savings and discounts advertised under the plans; (ii) OWP clients were induced to
pay additional monies for unprovided and/or unneeded pet care products or services;
and (1i1) OWP clients incurred other unjustified tack-on charges (e.g., hospitalization
charges) in addition to OWP membership fees and monthly payments.

113. Plaintiff and members of the Class altered their position to their
detriment and suffered injuries that include overpayments of initial OWP
membership fees, overpayments of monthly OWP fees, losses of advertised
minimum savings and discounts, payments for unprovided and/or unneeded pet care
products or services, and supplemental fees, markups, charges, and penalties
assessed on top of the OWP membership and monthly fees.

V.  CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
114. Plaintiff seeks certification of a Class defined as follows:

All consumers nationwide who: (i) purchased or renewed
any Optimum Wellness Plan from a Banfield Pet Hospital
(i1) for personal, family, or household purposes (iii) at any
time during the four year period preceding the filing of the
original complaint (“The Class™). Excluded from the Class
are Defendant; the officers, directors or employees of
Defendant; any entity in which Defendant has a controlling
interest; and any affiliate, legal representative, heir or
assign of Defendant. Also, excluded from the Class are any
federal, state or local governmental entities, any judicial
officer presiding over this action and the members of
his/her immediate family and judicial staff, and any juror
assigned to this action.
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115. Plamtiff also seeks certification of a Subclass defined as follows:

All consumers in California who: (i) purchased or renewed
any Optimum Wellness Plan from a Banfield Pet Hospital
(i1) for personal, family, or household purposes (iii) at any
time during the four year period preceding the filing of the
original complaint (“The Subclass”). Excluded from the
Class are Defendant; the officers, directors or employees of
Defendant; any entity in which Defendant has a controlling
interest; and any affiliate, legal representative, heir or
assign of Defendant. Also, excluded from the Class are any
federal, state or local governmental entities, any judicial
officer presiding over this action and the members of
his/her immediate family and judicial staff, and any juror
assigned to this action.

116. Plaintiff does not know the exact number of Class members at the
present time. However, due to the nature of the trade and commerce involved, there
appear to be thousands of Class members and thousands of Subclass members, such
that joinder of all Claés members and/or Subclass members is impracticable.

117. The Class and Subclass are ascertainable through Defendant’s business
records and notice can be provided through techpiques similar to those customarily
used in other consumer fraud cases and complex class actions.

118. There are questions of law and fact common to the Class and Subclass.
Defendant’s marketing practices were supplied uniformly to Class and Subclass
members who were similarly affected by having purchased Banfield OWPs and other
per care products or services under the OWPs.

119. Plaintiff asserts claims that are typical of the Class and Subclass.
Plaintiff and all Class and Subclass members have been subjected to the same
wrongful conduct because they all have purchased and/or renewed OWPs, which
Banfield misrepresented as providing minimum savings and discounts and which
Banfield used to upsell additional pet care products and services. As a result, and
like other members of the Class and Subclass, Plaintiff purchased and/or renewed

OWPs from Banfield, and the pet care products and services sold thereunder, which
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he otherwise would not have paid for, and/or for which he otherwise would have
paid less.

120. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of
the Class and Subclass. Plaintiff is represented by counsel competent and
experienced in both consumer protection and class action litigation.

121. Class certification is appropriate because Defendant has acted on
grounds that apply generally to the Class and Subclass, so that final injunctive relief
or corresponding declaratory relief is appropriate respecting the Class or Subclass as
a whole.

122. Class certification is also appropriate because common questions of law
and fact substantially predominate over any questions that may affect only individual
members of the Class or Subclass, including, inter alia, the following:

a.  Whether Defendant misrepresented or Omittgcd
material facts in connection with the marketing and
sale of OWPs;

b.  Whether Defendant represented that its OWPs have
characteristics, benefits, uses or qualities that they do
not have;

c.  Whether Defendant made misleading statements of
fact about the amount of sav1dr}gs and discounts
associated with its OWPs and/or the pet care
products and services sold thereunder;

d.  Whether Defendant represented that consumers will
receive savings or discounts for purchasing OWPs,
or the products or services thereunder, when the

advertised savings were contingent on events to
occur subsequent to the purchase;

e.  Whether Defendant’s misrepresentations and/or
nondisclosures would be material to a reasonable
consumer;

f. Whether Defendant’s misrepresentations and/or

nondisclosures were likely to deceive a reasonable
consumer in violation of the UCL;

g. Whether Defendant’s misrepresentations and/or

nondisclosures constitute an unlawful business
practice in violation of the UCL,;
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h. Whether Defendant’s misrepresentations and/or
nondisclosures constitute an unfair business practice
in violation of the UCL;

1. Whether Defendant’s upselling of additional pet care
products and services constitutes an unfair, unlawful,
or deceptive practice under the UCL;

j- Whether Defendant intentionally misrepresented the
savings and discounts available under the OWPs;

k. Whether Defendant knowingly failed to disclose
, Iél%%‘lal facts limiting the scope and/or value of its
S;

1. Whether the challenged practices harmed Plaintiff
and members of the Class or Subclass; and

m.  Whether Plaintiff and members of the Class or
Subclass are entitled to damages, restitution,
equitable relief, and/or injunctive relief.

123. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and
efficient adjudication of this controversy, since joinder of all the individual Class
members and/or Sublass members is impracticable. Furthermore, because the
restitution and/or damages suffered, and continue to be suffered, by each individual
Class member may be relatively small, the expense and burden of individual
litigation would make it very difficult or impossible for individual Class members to
redress the wrongs done to each of them individually and the burden imposed on the
judicial system would be enormous.

124. The prosecution of separate actions by the individual Class members
would create a risk of inconsistent or varying adjudicationé, which would establish
incompatible standards of conduct for Defendant. In contrast, the conduct of this

action as a class action presents far fewer management difficulties, conserves judicial

resources and the parties’ resources, and protects the rights of each Class member.
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V1. CAUSES OF ACTION
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATIONS OF THE FALSE ADVERTSING LAW
(CAL. Bus. & PROF CODE §§ 17500, ef seq.)

125. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all paragraphs alleged
herein.

126. California Business & Professions Code §§ 17500, et. seq. (the “FAL”)
broadly proscribes deceptive advertising in this State. Section 17500 makes it
unlawful for any corporation intending to sell products or perform services to make
any statement in advertising those products or services concerning any circumstance
or matter of fact connected with the proposed performance or disposition thereof,
which is untrue or misleading, and which is known, or which by the exercise of
reasonable care should be known, to be untrue or misleading, or not to sell those
products or services as advertised at the price stated therein, or as so advertised.

127. In this case, Banfield has violated Sections 17500. Banfield is a

corporation that intends to and does sell pet care products and perform pet care

services for California consumers. Banfield makes statements in advertising those

products and services concerning the savings and discounts provided to clients who
pay for Banfield’s OWPs, and the nature of the pet care products and services that
Banfield provides under the OWPs. These statements are made both orally by
Banfield representatives and in writing in print brochures and price sheets
disseminated at Banfield outlets in PetSmart stores, and invoices and correspondence
disseminated to Banfield clients. The statements are false or misleading, and are
known, or by the exercise of reasonable care should be known, to be false or
misleading, by Banfield. Indeed, Plaintiff is informed and believes that Banfield is
aware that OWP clients do not in fact receive the promised savings and discounts on

pet care products and services under the OWPs.
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128. To the contrary, the promised savings and discounts are based not only
on preventive pet care services actually paid for, but also on the OWP client’s
purchase of pet care products and services from Banfield that are not provided and/or
not peeded. The savings and discounts do not accumulate, as Banfield represents, on
a per-visit or per-month basis. Moreover, the underlying retail pricing scheme is
inflated and packed with additional fees and charges that OWP clients should not
have incurred. In short, Banfield does not actually sell the OWPs, or the pet care
products and services thereunder, as advertised or at the advertised prices.

129. In addition, Section 17509 of the FAL provides that any advertisement
soliciting the purchase of a service that requires, as a condition of sale, the purchase
of a different service shall conspicuously disclose in the advertisement the priée of
all those services. Banfield purportedly conditions cancellation of the OWP on
payment of retail charges for each individual service used to the date of cancellation
(unless the client pays for a full year of OWP services). Banfield has violated
Section 17509 by failing to disclose in its advertisements the retail price of each
individual service covered by the OWP.

130. Moreover, Banfield purportedly requires, as a condition of sale of
OWPs with dental options, that clients pay for any abnormal blood tests prior to
dental cleanings. Once again, Banfield has violated Section 17509 by failing to
disclose in its advertisements the price for the blood tests.

131. Section 17535 effectively provides that the Court may enjoin any
corporation or other person who violates the FAL, and may make such orders or
judgments as may be necessary to prevent the use of such practices, or which may be
necessary to restore to any person in interest any money or property which may have
been acquired by means of such practices. An FAL claim may be prosecuted by any

person who has suffered injury in fact and has lost money or property as a result of a
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violation of the FAL. The action may be prosecuted on a representative basis when it
meets the traditional class action requirements.

132. Plaintiff and the Class and Subclass have suffered injury in fact and lost
money or property as a result of Banfield’s violations of the FAL because: (a) they
paid more for OWPs due to the false representations and material omissions about
OWP savings, discounts, products, and services; (b) they would not have purchased

the OWPs on the same terms, and/or all of the pet care products and services

thereunder, if the true facts concerning the OWPs and Banfield’s unfair sales tactics -

had been known; and (c) the OWPs did not provide the advertised minimum savings,
discounts and benefits that were promised.

133. As aresult of these violations, Banfield has caused and continues to
cause damage to Plaintiff and members of the Class and Subclass and, if not stopped,
will continue to harm them.

134. Plaintiff and members of the Class and Subclass request that this Court
enter such orders or judgments as may be necessary to restore to any person in
interest any money which may have been acquired by means of such deceptive

advertising.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATIONS OF THE CONSUMERS LEGAL REMEDIES ACT
(CAL. C1v. CODE § 1750, et seq.)

135. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all paragraphs alleged
herein.

136. Defendant Banfield Pet Hospital is a “person” under Cal. Civ. Code
§ 1761(c). |

137. Plaintiff is a “consumer,” as defined by Cal. Civ. Code § 1761(d), who
purchased an OWP sold by Banfield for preventive pet care services and purchased

pet care products and services from Banfield subject to OWP savings and discounts.
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138. Cal. Civ. Code § 1770(a)(5) prohibits “[r]epresenting that goods or
services have sponsorship, approval, characteristic, ingredients, uses, benefits, or
quantities which they do not have or that a person has a sponsorship, approval,
status, affiliation, or connection which he or she does not have.” Banfield violated
this provision by misrepresenting that its OWPs provided savings and discounts on
pet care products and services, which savings and discounts were not provided or
were materially overstated. Banfield also violated this provision by using OWPs as a
tool for upselling costly additional pet care products and services.

139. Cal. Civ. Code § 1770(a)(9) prohibits “advertising goods or services

“with intent not to sell them as advertised.” Banfield violated this provision by

intentionally and deceptively advertising that its OWPs provided savings and
discounts on pet care products and services, which savings and discounts were not
provided or were materially overstated.

140. Cal. Civ. Code § 1770(a)(13) prohibits “[m]aking false or misleading
statements of fact concerning reasons for, existence of, or amounts of price
reductions.” Banfield violated this provision by overstating the amount of savings
and discounts, if any, on pet care products and services under its OWPs.

141. Cal. Civ. Code § 1770(a)(17) prohibits “[r]epresenting that the
consumer Wﬂl receive a rebate, discount, or other economic benefit, if the earning of
the benefit is contingent on an event to occur subsequent to the consummation of the
transaction.” Banfield violated this provision by representing that OWP purchasers
will receive savings or discounts, when the earning of the savings and discounts were
contingent on events to occur subsequent to the OWP purchase. Among other
things, the advertised savings and discounts were contingent on the consumer’s non-
cancellation of the OWP for a full year, use of all bundled OWP products and

services, and normal blood test results prior to dental cleanings.
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142. Plaintiff and the Class suffered lost money or property as a result of

| these violations because: (a) they paid more for OWPs due to the misrepresentations

about OWP savings, discounts, products, and services; (b) they would not have
purchased the OWPs on the same terms and/or all of the pet care products and
services thereunder if the true facts concerning the OWPs and Banfield’s unfair sales
tactics had been known; and (c) the OWPs did not provide the advertised savings,
discounts, and benefits that were promised. |

143. As aresult of these violations, Banfield has caused and continues to
cause actual injury to Plaintiff and members of the Class and Subclass and, if not
stopped, will continue to harm them.

144. In accordance with Cal. Civ. Code § 1780(a), Plaintiff and members of
the Class seek injunctive and equitable relief for Banfield’s violations of the CLRA.

| 145. While Plaintiff does not seek to recover damages under the CLRA in

this initial Complaint, after mailing 'appropriate notice and demand in accordance
with Civil Code § 1782(a) & (d), Plaintiff will subsequently amend this Complaint to
also include a request for compensatory and punitive damages.

146. Plaintiff includes an affidavit with this Complaint reflecting that venue
in this District is proper, to the extent such an affidavit is required by Cal. Civ. Code

- § 1780(d) in federal court.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATION OF THE CALIFORNIA UNFAIR COMPETITION LAW
(CAL. BUs. & PROF. CODE § 17200, ef seq.)

147. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all paragraphs alleged
herein. ‘

148. Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 prohibits any “unlawful, unfair, or
fraudulent business act or practice.” Banfield has engaged in unlawful, and unfair,

and fraudulent business acts and practices in violation of the UCL.
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149. Banfield has violated the unlawful prong by its violations of the FAL
and CLRA described above. | |

150. Banfield has violated the unfair prong of section 17200 because the acts
and practices set forth in the Complaint—including false advertising and unfair and
coercive upselling—offend established public policy. The harm that these acts and
practices cause to pet care consumers greatly outweighs any benefits associated with
them. Banfield’s conduct has also impaired competition within the market for
preventive pet care services and has stopped Plaintiff from making fully informed
decisions about whether to purchase, renew, and retain OWPs, whether to purchase
additional pet care products and services as an OWP client, and/or what price to pay
for such products and services.

151. Banfield has violated the fraudulent prong of section 17200 because its
misrepresentations and material omissions about OWP savings, discounts, products
and services, and the unfair sales tactics used to sell additional pet care products and
services under OWPs (as set forth in this Complaint), were likely to deceive a
reasonable consumer and the true facts would be material to a reasonable consumer.

152. Plaintiff has suffered injury in fact, including the loss of money or
property, as a result of Banfield’s unlawful, unfair, and/or deceptive practices. As
set forth more fully above, in purchasing and renewing Banfield OWPs and in
purchasing pet care products and services theréunder, Plaintiff relied on the
misrepresentations and omissions of Banfield. Had he known that Banfield OWPs
do not provide the advertised savings and discounts, or that he would be induced to
purchase additional pet care products and services as an OWP client and via unfair
sales tactics, he would not have purchased and/or renewed the OWPs that he
purchased and renewed, and/or he would not have paid as much for the OWPs or the

products and services thereunder.
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153. All of the wrongful conduct alleged herein occurred, and continues to
occur, in the conduct of Banfield’s business. Banfield’s wrongful conduct is part of
a pattern or generalized course of conduct that is still perpetuated and repeated
throughout the State of California and nationwide.

154. Plaintiff requests that this Court enter such orders or judgments as may
be necessary to enjoin Banfield from continuing its unlawful, deceptive, and/or
unfair business practices and to restore to Plaintiff and members of the Class any
money that Banfield acquired by unfair competition, as provided in Cal. Bus. & Prof.
Code § 17203, and for such other relief set forth below.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
FRAUD BY CONCEALMENT

155. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all paragraphs alleged
herein.

156. As set forth above, Banfield concealed material facts concerning the
true nature, pricing, and value of its OWPs and the pet care products and services
sold thereunder, the nature of the tactics used to sell OWPs, and the true amount of
limited savings and discounts, if any, available under the OWPs (as set forth more
fully above). Banfield had a duty to make these disclosures based on its superior
knowledge of its products, services, and pricing scheme, its status as a pet care
hospital, and its affirmative misrepresentations about the advertised savings,
discounts, products, and services. |

157. Banlfield concealed these material facts, in whole or in part, with the
intent to induce Plaintiff and members of the Class and Subclass to purchase
Banfield OWPs and the pet care products and services offered thereunder.

158. Plaintiff and the Class and Sublcass were unaware of the concealed
material facts described above at the time of their purchases. If they had known the

concealed facts at the time of their purchases, Plaintiff and the Class and Subclass

-5 -




O 0 1 Y bk WD

NN NN N NN NN R R e s e s
0 3 N L A WD =, O YW 0NN Nl W N = O

Casuf 8:13-cv-01749-JLS-AN Document 1-1 Filed 11/05/13 Page 23 of 32 Page ID #:54

woud not have purchased and/or renewed the OWPs, or purchased the pet care
products and services thereunder, and/or they would not have paid as much therefore
as they did.

159. As aresult of Banfield’s concealment of material facts, Plaintiff and the

Class and Subclass sustained damages in an amount to be determined at trial.
FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

INTENTIONAL MISREPRESENTATION

160. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all paragraphs alleged
herein. '

161. Banfield materially and intentionally misrepresented the savings,
discounts, pricing, products, and services to be enjoyed by consumers under the
OWPs, as alleged more fully above.

162. Banfield’s misrepresentations about the OWPs, and the the savings,
discounts, pricing, products, and services thereunder, were intended to influence the
purchasing decisions of Plaintiff and members of the Class and Subclass, who
justifiably relied upon Banfield’s misrepresentations as set forth above.

163. Defendant’s misrepresentations caused Plaintiff and the Class and
Subclass to purchase and/or renew OWPs, and to pay for pet care products and
services thereunder, that they would not otherwisé have paid for, and/or at prices
above what they otherwise would have paid.

164. As aresult of Banfield’s intentional misprepresentations, Plaintiff and

the Class and Subclass sustained damages in an amount to be determined at trial.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATION OF THE CONSUMER PROTECTION ACTS OF THE
VARIOUS STATES

165. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates the allegations elsewhere in the

Complaint as if set forth in full herein.
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166. Plaintiff brings this claim individually, on behalf of the nationwide
Class, and on behalf of the California Subclass. |

167. By deceptively marketing OWPs in the manner set forth above, and/or
upselling additional pet care products and services to OWP clients, Defendant
Banfield has engaged in unfair and/or deceptive acts in violation of the state
consumer statutes below:

168. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Ala. Code. §§ 8-19-1, et seq.

169. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Alaska Stat. Code §§ 45.50.471, et seq.

170. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Ariz. Rev. Stat §§ 44-1522, et seq.

171. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Ark. Code Ann. §§ 4-88-107, et seq.

172. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Colo. Rev. Stat. §§ 6-1-101, et seq.

173. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 42-110b, et seq.

174. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Del. Code Ann. tit. 6, §§ 2511, et seq.

175. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of D.C. Code Ann §§ 28-3901, et seq.

176. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Fla. Stat. Ann. §§ 501.201, et seq.

177. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts

or practices in violation of Ga. Code Ann. §§ 10-1-392, et seq.
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178. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Haw. Rev. Stat. §§ 480, et seq.

179. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Idaho Code §§ 48-601, et seq.

180. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of 815 Ill. Comp. Stat. 505/1, et seq.

181. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Ind. Code Ann. §§ 24-5-0.5-1, et seq.

182. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Iowa Code §§ 714.16, et seq.

183. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Kan. Stat. §§ 50-623, et seq.

184. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Ky. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§ 367.110, et seq.

185. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of La. Rev. Stat. §§51:1404, et seq.

186. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practicés in violation of Me. Rev. Stat. tit. 5, §§ 205-A, et seq.

187. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Md. Code. Ann., Com. Law §§ 13-101, et seq.‘

188. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Mass. Gen. Laws ch. 93A §§ 1, et seq.

189. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Mich. Comp. Laws §§ 445.901, et seq.

190. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts

or practices in violation of Minn. Stat. §§ 8.31, et seq.
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191. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Miss. Code Ann. §§ 75-24-3, et seq.

192. Defendént has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Mo. Rev. Stat. §§ 407.010 et seq.

193. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Mont. Code Ann. §§ 30-14-101, et seq.

194. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 59-1601, et seq.

195. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Nev. Rev. Stat. §§ 598.0903, et seq.

196. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of N.H. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§ 358-A:1, et seq. |

197. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of N.J. Stat. Ann. §§ 56:8-1, et seq.

198. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of N.M. Stat. Ann. §§ 57-12-1, et seq.

199. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law §§ 349, et seq.

200. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of N.C. Gen. Stat §§ 75-1.1, et seq.

201. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of N.D. Cent. Code §§ 51-15-01, et seq.

202. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Okla. Stat. tit. 15 §§ 751, et seq.

203. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts

or practices in violation of Or. Rev. Stat. §§ 646.605, et seq.
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204. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or decéptive acts
or practices in violation of 3 PA. Cons. Stat. §§ 201-1, et seq.

205. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of R.I. Gen. Laws §§ 6-13.1-1, et seq.

206. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of S.C. Code §§ 39-5-10, et seq.

207. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of S.D. Codified Laws §§ 37-24-1, et seq.

208. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 47-18-101, et seq.

209. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Tex. Bus. & Com. Code Ann. §§ 17.41, et seq.

210. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Utah Code. Ann. §§ 13-11-1, et seq.

211. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Vt. Stat. Ann. Tit. 9, §§ 2451, et seq.

212. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Va. Code Ann. §§ 59.1-196, et seq.

213. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Wash. Rev. Code §§ 19.86.010, et seq.

214. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of W. Va. Code §§ 46A-6-101, et seq.

215. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Wis. Stat. §§ 100.18, et seq.

216. Defendant has engaged in unfair competition or unfair or deceptive acts

or practices in violation of Wyo. Stat. Ann. §§ 40-12-101, et seq.
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217. The acts, practices, sales tactics, misrepresentations and omissions by
Banfield described above, and Banfield’s dissemination of deceptive and misleading
marketing materials concerning Banfield OWPs and the products and services
offered thereunder, constitutes unfair or deceptive acts or practices within the
meaning of each of the above-enumerated state statutes; because each of these
statutes generally prohibits deceptivé conduct in consumer transactions, and each
provides substantially similar grounds for relief as under California’s FAL, CLRA,
and/or UCL.

218. Banfield violated each of these statutes by: (i) misrepresenting the
savings, discounts, products, and services available under its OWPs; and
(i1) upselling unnecessary pet care products and services to OWP clients as described
above.

219. Plaintiff, Class members and Subclass members were injured as a direct
and proximate result of Defendant’s unfair, deceptive and/or unconscionable acts and
practices, because: (a) Plaintiff and the Class and Subclass were induced to purchase
pet care services they otherwise would not have purchased had they known the true
facts, and/or (b) Plaintiff and the Class and Subclass were induced to pay more for
Banfield pet care products and services than they would have paid if the true facts
alleged above had not been concealed and/or misrepresented.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, individually and on behalf all others similarly
situated, respectfully requests that this Court enter a judgment against Defendant and
in favor of Plaintiff, and granf the following relief:

A.  Determine that this action may be maintained as a Class action with
respect to the Class and Subclass identified herein and certify it as such under Rules

23(b)(2) and/or 23(b)(3), or alternatively certify all issues and claims that are
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appropriately certified, and designate and appoint Plaintiff as a Class Representative
and his counsel as Class Counsel;

B.  Declare, adjudge and decree the conduct of thé Defendant as alleged
herein to be unlawful, unfair and/or deceptive; |

C.  Enjoin Defendant from continuing the deceptive marketing and unfair
business practices alleged herein;

D.  Notify all Class and Subclass members about the true limitations on
savings and discounts under Banfield’s OWPs;

E.  Authorize Class and Subclass members to exercise their right to rescind
the OWPs without cancellation-related charges;

F. Award Plaintiff and the Class and Subclass restitution of all monies paid
to Defendant as a result of unlawful, deceptive, and/or unfair business practices;

G.  Award Plaintiff and the Class and Subclass actual, compensatory
damages, as proven at trial, except that CLRA damages will be requested after
CLRA notice;

H.  Award Plaintiff and the Class and Subclass exemplary damages in such
amount as proven at trial, except that CLRA punitive damages will be requested after
CLRA notice;

L Award Plaintiff and the Class reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and pre-
and post-judgment interest; and

J. Award Plaintiff and the Class and Subclass such other further and
different relief as the nature of the case may require or as may be determined to be
just, equitable, and proper by this Court.

JURY TRIAL DEMAND
Plaintiff, by counsel, requests a trial by jury on his legal claims, as set forth

herein.
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DATED: November 5, 2013
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HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL
SHAPIRO LLP

By . e
Lee M. Gordon (174168)

301 N. Lake Ave., Suite 203

Pasadena, CA 91101

Tel.: (213) 330-7150

Fax: (213) 330-7152

lee@hbsslaw.com

Steve W. Berman ,

{Iﬁ)GENS BERMAN SOBOL SHAPIRO
1918 Eighth Avenue, Suite 3300

Seattle, WA 98101

Telephone: (206) 623-7292
steve(@hbsslaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff and the Proposed
Class
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| STEVE W. BERMAN oro hac vzce endz f%’ B
| HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL S RO L
1| 1918 Eighth Avenue, Sulte 3300 -
| Seattle, WA 98101~
' ‘.Telephone 206) 623- 7292
|| Facsimile: S 06) 623- 0594
: steVe@hbss aw.com'

|| LEE M. GORDON (SBN 174168)
| HAGENS BERMAN SOBOL
tSHAPIRO'LLP
11:301 N. Lake Ave., Suite 203 -
Pasadena, CA: 91101 .

| Tel.: (213) 330- 7150
|I'Fax: (213) 330-7152
|| lee@t bss aw.com

| Attorneys for Plazm‘zﬁ’
iz and the Proposed Class
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o _’ DECLARATION RE CLRA VENUE
I Gregory T Pero do hereby declare and state as follows | o
‘1.7 FTam a party pla1nt1ff 1n Gregory T Pero et al., on behalf of hzmself

: i‘v.and all others szmzlarly Sztuated V. Banf eld Pet Hospzz‘al a Delaware corporatzon o
_Pursuant to- CAL CIV CODE § 1780(d) Imake thlS declaratlon in support of the .- _i 1
' i'--'Class Actlon Complamt and the clan:n therem for rel1ef under CAL CIV CODE ._ | |
;:‘i.,§ 17 80(a) I have personal k:nowledge cf the facts stated hereln and 1f necessary,

'_i 'could cornpetently testlfy thereto o R _ e o R
| | 2 ThlS action for rehef under CAL. CIV CODE§ 1780(a) has been : R
:' _commenced ina county that isa proper place for tr1a1 of thlS actron because ._ o ,' o 1
::'Defendant Banﬁeld Pet Hospltal does busmess 1n this dlstnct (the Central Dlstrlct of b' b

2 Cahforma) and throughout the State of Cahforma ' |

ThlS declaratron 1s SIgned u;nder penalty of per]ury under the laws of the State SN

of Cahforma and the Unlted States thls ZS ‘LLday of 0ctober 201 3

GregoryT Pero .
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

CIVIL COVER SHEET

1. (a) PLAINTIFFS ( Check box if you are representing yourself [ ] )

Gregory T. Pero, an individual, et al; on behalf of himself and all others similarly

situated

DEFENDANTS

corporation

{ Check box if you are representing yourself [ )

Medical Management International, Inc,, d.b.a. Bandfield Pet Hospital, a Delaware

(b) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address and Telephone Number. if you
are representing yourself, provide same information.)
Lee M. Gordon (SBN 174168} - Hagens Berman Sobol Shapiro LLP

301 North Lake Avenue, Suite 203

Pasadena, CA 91701
(213) 330-7150

{b) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address and Telephone Number. If you
are representing yourself, provide same information.)

H. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an X in one box only.)

1. U.S. Government
Plaintiff

2.U.S. Government
Defendant

D 3. Federal Question (U.S.
Government Not a Party)

.4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship
of Parties in item 1I)

11, CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES-For Diversity Cases Only
(Place an X in one box for plaintiff and one for defendant)
Citi This Stat F1 DDEF1 Incorporated or Principal Place D 4 EE}F4
itizen of This tate of Business in this State
Citizen of AnotherState [} 2 [T] 2 Incorporated and Principal Place )
Giti subject of of Business in Another State t s 5
itizen or Subject of a ) )
Foreign Country [33 [J 3 ForeignNation (16 {]6

IV. ORIGIN (Place an X
1. Original D 2

Proceeding

in one box only.)

Removed from D 3. Remanded from D 4, Reinstated or D 5. Transferred from Another D 6&;'::Ct
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V. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT: JURY DEMAND: Yes [ ] No
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CLASS ACTION under

F.R.Cv.P.23:

(Check "Yes" only if demanded in complaint.)

[X] MONEY DEMANDED IN COMPLAINT: $ 5,000,000+

V1. CAUSE OF ACTION (Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing and write a brief statement of cause. Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity.)
State law claims subject to 28 U.S.C. §1332(d).
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
CIVIL COVER SHEET

VIII. VENUE: Your answers to the questions below will determine the division of the Court to which this case will most likely be initially assigned. This initial assignment
is subjectto change, in accordance with the Court's General Orders, upon review by the Court of your Complaint or Notice of Removal.

Question A: Was this case removed from
state court?

[ Yes No

If "no, " go to Question B. If "yes," check the

box to the right that applies, enter the
corresponding division in response to

Question D, below, and skip to Section IX.

[] LosAngeles Western
[] Ventura, Santa Barbara, or San Luis Obispo Western
[] orange Southern
[J Riverside or San Bernardino Eastern

Question B: Is the United States, or one of
its agencies or employees, a party to this
action?

[ Yes [x] No

IVISION !

. Whichthe mo L Whighthe majout :

If "no, " go to Question C. If "yes," checkthe |[] Los Angeles [ Los Angeles Western
box to the right that applies, enter the Ventura, Santa Barbara, or San Luis Ventura, Santa Barbara, or San Luis
corresponding division in response to ] Obispo O Obispo Western
Question D, below, and skip to Section IX.

[J Orange [ Orange Southern

[J Riverside or San Bernardino [C] Riverside or San Bernardino Eastern

[] Other [] Other : Western

indicate the location in which a
majority of plaintiffs reside:

Indicate the location in which a
majority of defendants reside:

Lo
i

Indicate the location in which a
maiority of clai ’

C.1. Is either of the following true? If so, check the one that applies:
2 or more answers in Column C

D only 1 answer in Column C and no answers in Column D

Your case will initially be assigned to the
SOUTHERN DIVISION.
Enter "Southern” in response to Question D, below.

If none applies, answer question C2 to the right. el

XJ| |
L0
11

C.2. Is either of the following true? If so, check the one that applies:

[ ] 2 or more answers in Column D

[_] only 1 answer in Column D and no answers in Column C

Your case will initially be assigned to the
EASTERN DIVISION.
Enter "Eastern” in response to Question D, below.

If none applies, go to the box below. l

Your case will initially be assigned to the
WESTERN DIVISION.
Enter "Western" in response to Question D below.

Enter the initial division determined by Question A, B, or Cabove: o o

Southern Division
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

CIVIL COVER SHEET
IX(a). IDENTICAL CASES: Has this action been previously filed in this court and dismissed, remanded or closed? NO [] YES
If yes, list case number(s):
IX(b). RELATED CASES: Have any cases been previously filed in this court that are related to the present case? NO |:| YES

If yes, list case number(s):

Civil cases are deemed related if a previously filed case and the present case:

(Check all boxes that apply)

[:] A. Arise from the same or closely related transactions, happenings, or events; or

D B. Call for determination of the same or substantially related or similar questions of law and fact; or

D C. For other reasons would entail substantial duplication of labor if heard by different judges; or

D D. Involve the same patent, trademark or copyright, and one of the factors identified above in a, b or c also is present.

X. SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY
(OR SELF-REPRESENTED LITIGANT):

Fi
4 % //\nlm DATE: November 5, 2013
A — N

Notice to Counsel/Parties: The CV-71 (J5-44) Civil Cover Sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or
other papers as required by law. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required pursuant to Local Rule 3-1 is not filed
but is used by the Clerk of the Court for the purpose of statistics, venue and initiating the civil docket sheet. (For more detailed instructions, see separate instructions sheet).

Key to Statistical codes relating to Social Security Cases:

Nature of SuitCode  Abbreviation

861

862

863

863

864

865

HIA

BL

DIwC

DIww

SSID

RS

Substantive Statement of Cause of Action

All claims for heaith insurance benefits (Medicare) under Title 18, Part A, of the Social Security Act, as amended. Also,
include claims by hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, etc., for certification as providers of services under the program.
(42 U.S.C. 1935FF(b))

All claims for "Black Lung" benefits under Title 4, Part B, of the Federal Coal Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969. (30 U.S.C.
923)

All claims filed by insured workers for disability insurance benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as amended; plus
all claims filed for child's insurance benefits based on disability. (42 U.S.C. 405 (g)) '

All claims filed for widows or widowers insurance benefits based on disability under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as
amended. (42 U.S.C. 405 (g))

All claims for supplemental security income payments based upon disability filed under Title 16 of the Social Security Act, as
amended.

All claims for retirement (old age) and survivors benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as amended.
(42 U.S.C. 405 (g))
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES JUDGES

This case has been assigned to District Judge Josephine L. Staton and the assigned

Magistrate Judge is Arthur Nakazato

The case number on all documents filed with the Court should read as follows:

SACV13-01749 JLS (ANx)

Pursuant to General Order 05-07 of the United States District Court for the Central District of

California, the Magistrate Judge has been designated to hear discovery related motions.

All discovery related motions should be noticed on the calendar of the Magistrate Judge.

Clerk, U. S. District Court

November 5, 2013 By A.Gonzalez
Date Deputy Clerk

NOTICE TO COUNSEL

A copy of this notice must be served with the summons and complaint on all defendants (if a removal action is

filed, a copy of this notice must be served on all plaintiffs).

Subsequent documents must be filed at the following location:

[[] Western Division Southern Division [] Eastern Division
312 N. Spring Street, G-8 411 West Fourth St,, Ste 1053 3470 Twelfth Street, Room 134
Los Angeles, CA 90012 Santa Ana, CA 92701 Riverside, CA 92501

Failure to file at the proper location will result in your documents being returned to you.
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